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Government Comments to Request For Proposal (RFP) Questions

1. You have advised that any task orders for work in this program that exceed a contract value of $100,000 under GEITA05 will be competed among holders of GEITA 05 IDIQ contracts. Some of these will be competed among full-and-open winners, but others will be competed only among those who succeed in securing a small-business IDIQ.

1. Answer:  Task orders will be competed in accordance with the PKV- H6 Special Provision in the RFP.  The second comment is not correct.  If no exception to competition applies, all GEITA05 contractors will be solicited for a task order, or in certain instances as determined by the government, small business competitive set-asides,  among those small businesses who were awarded a contract under the small business set-aside competition, may be accomplished.  The PKV-H6 special provision in the contract paragraph 3 has been amended to reflect this change. 
2. There will be no separate small-business RFP. Those interested in submitting as a small business should so indicate. Small business offerors may compete in the full-and-open competition (and will be placed in that competition unless asking to be considered only in the small-business phase of the competition), and if selected in the full-and-open competition it would not then be competed a subsequent small-business round. All small-business submitters will be automatically considered in the subsequent small-business round, if they do not succeed in the full-and-open competition round.  Small businesses may compete, if they wish, only in the small business competition by so indicating. 

2. Government comment:  Small Business may be considered for the full and open competition, small business set-aside competition, or both.  These changes are reflected in attachment L-10 of amendment 0001.  The basis for this change to the RFP is the “Limitations in Subcontracting Clause” FAR 52.219-14, and is further clarified in the revised attachment L-10  that is included with amendment 0001.   
3. The holder of a small-business IDIQ may compete for full-and-open task orders, but AFCEE will issue small-business set-aside task orders as well, for which only holders of a small-business IDIQ may compete. 

3.  Government comment: Agree.  Task orders will be competed in accordance with the PKV- H6 Special Provision in the RFP.  If no exception to competition applies, all GEITA05 contractors will be solicited for a task order, or only small businesses who were awarded a contract under the small business set aside competition will be solicited in accordance with the revised  sentence under paragraph 3 of PKV-H6 which is reflected in amendment 0001 and the answer to question 1 above.

4. Although other labor categories may be required to perform task orders, the RFP request for information on certain labor categories is exclusive and only information for those labor categories should be provided for in the response.

4.  Answer:  Agree.  Pricing information required with your proposal is for evaluation purposes.  See Attachment L-11 for a list of required labor categories. 

5. AFCEE considers it appropriate that small businesses might organize a small business JV to compete for AFCEE GEITA05. AFCEE will be guided by the Small Business Administration regulations regarding the qualifications of small business JVs. AFCEE believes that the small business program will be of sufficient size to allow the JV to qualify under SBA provisions that require only that each business in the JV qualify as a small business, but that the aggregation of their business revenues and personnel need not be under the small business thresholds. In other words, so long as each business meets the small business size standard, the JV will qualify as a small business entity. The size limit applicable for the small business qualification in this competition is $6,000,000 per year average.

5. Answer:  The size limit applicable for the small business qualification in this competition is NAICS 541620 ($6,000,000 average annual gross receipts for the last three years).  Each submittal will be classified in accordance with Small Business Administration (SBA) regulations.
6. Relatedly, we understand that AFCEE’s view is that the internal organization of the JV (such as limits on the number of firms in the JV, its business organization (i.e., corporate, LLC, partnership, or operating agreement) are not per se issues of concern.  AFCEE will want to see the JV agreement, will want to analyze its proposed management structure and procedures, and its proposed accounting procedures in order to determine whether the JV meets the small-business requirements. Of course it will evaluate the JV against all of the criteria set out in the requirements.

6.  Answer: Joint ventures shall be considered either a large or small business in accordance with NAICS 541620.  Each submittal will be classified in accordance with Small Business Administration (SBA) regulations.
7. AFCEE acknowledges that the FAR provides that a qualifying small business may utilize a non-CAS accounting system, as provided at 48CFR 99-3.201-1. However, AFCEE will require that the small business have a sufficient accounting system to meet the cost, personnel and billing requirements of the AFCEE GEITA 05 program, and it must be acceptable to AFCEE auditors. AFCEE views this as a pass/fail requirement. AFCEE does not require any particular system of accounting, so long as it is satisfied that the small-business entity will be able to appropriately manage contracting under the IDIQ.

7.  Answer: Yes, generally, however, the sufficiency of the accounting system will be evaluated by DCAA and the Contracting Officer will make a decision.

8. AFCEE’s view is that a newly established JV would have no history of accounting systems to audit. Therefore, AFCEE would audit the JV members – all of which collectively would be the offeror -- to determine the acceptability of the systems in the JV. In addition, as noted in the current documents on the web, any sub that will perform more than 20% will have to submit and pass the accounting audit. Even if JV member will do less than 20%, they would be audited, because that is what the offeror will be evaluated as.

8.  Answer: Yes

9. AFCEE will measure the performance history of a JV by adding together the experience histories of the JV members. It would not matter whether the managing company of the JV meets the four-year requirement itself, so long as the combination of team member experience aggregates to meets the experience requirement.

9.  Answer: Yes, however; see RFP Section M 4.5 subfactor 1.1 – Corporate Experience requirement for the revised years of experience requirement.

10. AFCEE’s view is that companies may include the previous experiences and project histories of its current employees, recognizing that business histories include acquisitions (of companies and personnel) and mergers. Therefore, work that was performed by a particular individual for a previous employer may be counted as relevant experience for the offering company. AFCEE asks that an explanation of the acquisition be sent out in the organizational history section of the offer.

10.  Answer: Years of experience requirements are listed in Section M, 1.2. Corporate Experience, and 1.3 Program Manager Experience.  Corporate experience must be prior activity by the corporation.  In contrast, program manager experience may be met by personal experience of an individual employee.  Past performance must be performance by the corporation.  The exception would be a merger, buyout, or JV, which must be explained in the organizational history section of the RFP.

11. AFCEE’s view of the 51% performance requirement is that the prime must perform 51% of the work over the course of its IDIQ contract, and not necessarily perform 51% of the work on any particular task order.

11.  Answer: We concur with interpretation however FAR 52.219-14 states that the offeror/contractor agrees to “at least 50% of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern.”  Percentage is based upon the overall contract and not on each task order. 

12. AFCEE will not require that the company Program Manager be sited within a particular distance of AFCEE (originally 20 miles), but the offeror must convince AFCEE that it has the capability to meet the program management requirements from any proposed location.

12.  Answer: The proposed approach will be scrutinized in the Management Approach and Program Manager evaluation, especially Section M, 4.4(b) and 4.6(c).   

13.  Request confirmation that a requirement of the RFP is that any firm that is serving as a prime or sub consultant on a current AFCEE contract is precluded from any role on the GEITA contract?

13.  Answer: True.  However, you may propose on the GEITA05 as long as you provide a commitment to withdraw from any other AFCEE contract upon award of a GEITA05 contract.  Reference RFP Section L paragraph 3.6(b) and 2.1.4.  All GEITA05 contractors must comply with the OCI clause in the RFP Section I, Paragraph 5352.209-9002.
14a.  Re: Technical Volume for the GEITA05 proposal:  Table 2.2, Proposal Organization lists Corporate Experience tables as a section under 4.4, Corporate Experience.  Are these the Attachments L-1 through L-3 or tables that include descriptions of corporate experience?  
14a.  Answer:  In Table 2.2, Corporate Experience tables refer to Attachments L-1 and L-2.  Attachment L-3 is an example only.  Table 2.2, Corporate Experience Description refers to the description offerors must write to demonstrate performance of contracts/projects listed in Attachments L-1 and L-2.

14 b. Attachments L-1 and L-2 include an incomplete list of Performance Work Statement (PWS) items.  Are these the only PWS items that need to be addressed in Corporate Experience? 

14 b. Answer: Yes, that is the minimum that must be addressed.
14 c. Attachment L-6, Present/Past Performance Information Sheet, Block 12, Table of Services that apply to this project, has the incorrect PWS section applied to 9, Cost/Scheduling Support, and 10, Training Support.  These should be 2.3.13 and 2.3.14 respectively.  You might want to check the web version to eliminate any confusion on the part of others.

14 c. Answer:  The category descriptions are correct in the current Attachment L-6, question 12.  The correction to the PWS references has already been made on the past performance website and will be reflected in Amendment 0001 of the RFP. 
15. Volume I, Section 3.8 (k) requires the offerors to include a signed copy of the “Model Contract”. However, in reviewing the final RFP, we could not locate the “Model Contract”. Would AFCEE please inform us where the Model Contract is located?

15.  Answer: The Model Contract consists of the Standard Form 33 ( Sections A-K with applicable attachments)
16. It appears that the RFP requires only one “Key Person” – the Program Manager. However, Volume I Section 3.8.2 requires the contractor to provide a listing of key personnel, implying more than a single individual. Will AFCEE please clarify this? If offerors include resumes or bio’s of additional key personnel (other than the Program Manager), will AFCEE evaluate them?  If so, what evaluation criteria will be use?

16. Answer: Only the Program Manager will be evaluated.

17. Attachment L-6, Section 14 requires the names of relevant personnel, their roles on the subject project, and proposed roles on GEITA05. Will AFCEE advise the offerors how it intends to evaluate these people?

17. Answer: Section M, Paragraph 5 (2) states that the evaluation will focus on and target performance based upon the Mission Capability subfactors.

18. Attachment L-6, Section 3. Are we correct in assuming that words “on this effort” is meant to indicate the contract submitted for Present/Past Performance Information?
18. Answer: Yes

19. Section 6.4.4 indicates that profit or fee on future task orders will be negotiated at the task order level. Section 6.5.1 requires the offerors to provide “ burdened rates inclusive of profit/fee.” Will AFCEE provide clarification?

19. Answer: Section 6.4.4 is correct.  The RFP requires burdened rates inclusive of profit/fee, which should be your normal fee proposed for a low risk cost type task order.

20. Because the small business prime is obligated to perform 50 percent or more of the work, it appears that the threshold of 20 percent for each subcontractor is limiting the prime to no more than two subcontractors who are not performing only “critical functions.” Can this threshold be lowered to allow the evaluation of additional, supplemental subcontractors? 

20. Answer: No, the threshold cannot be lower.  However, the prime may include team members that will perform less than 20 percent in accordance with RFP Section L, paragraph 2.1.4(a)(2).
21. Section 6.7 indicates that information must be provided for subcontractors performing 20 percent or more of the proposed contract effort. Does this mean the subcontractors performing less than 20 percent of the effort are not required to provide data requested in Section 6.5.1 and Attachment L-11?

21. Answer: Yes, unless they are a team member in accordance with RFP Section L, paragraph 2.1.4(a)(2).
22. In responding to Section 7.3.2, is the small business prime limited to using the RFP-designated NAICS or can they use other, appropriate NAICS Industry Sub-sectors? 

22.  Answer:  The Offeror is limited to NAICS 541620, unless you are subcontracting out for a specific GEITA/GEITA05 task order, then you may use the appropriate NAICS code for the subcontracted portion of the task order. 
23. The estimated value of this total procurement is $850 million. However, there is no estimate provided for the value of individual awards.  Are the offerors expected to use the $850 million dollar figure to develop the Small Business Subcontracting Plan? If not, what basis should be used to formulate their own estimate of the contract value?
23. Answer:  No, offerors should base their estimates for total contract value in accordance with  RFP Sections 7.3.1(d) or 7.3.2(c) as applicable. 

24. Section 5.3.1 indicates that the Government will only consider the past performance of subcontractors performing at least 20% of the effort, or subcontractors performing critical functions, but performing less than 20%. We believe that it is left up to the offerors to define what they consider to be a “critical function.” If so, how will AFCEE evaluate this definition? 
24. Answer: Yes, it is at the offeror’s discretion.  The offerors are to define the critical function.  The proposed critical function will be evaluated in accordance with RFP Section M, Paragraph 5(2).

25. Based on the RFP, the value of individual IDIQ contracts under this solicitation has not been quantified.  As a result, the “20% of the effort” threshold is not quantified. Therefore, it is possible for an offeror to include three to four subcontractors who will perform critical functions that fall beneath this threshold.  Will AFCEE review past performance of all subcontractors? As this proposal only requires submission of burdened rates, will AFCEE provide some indication to the offerors of the total anticipated price of individual awards so the 20 percent threshold can be quantified?

25. Answer:  AFCEE will review past performance of the prime and all team members as defined in RFP section L, paragraph 2.1.4 Teaming.  Offerors should base their estimates for total contract value in accordance with RFP Sections 7.3.1(d) or 7.3.2(c) as applicable.
26. Section 2.1.4(g) and Section 3.6 indicate that proposed prime contractor, subcontractors or team members on this acquisition cannot participate on any other GEITA05 proposal. It is our understanding that this acquisition is identified as “GEITA05.”  Will AFCEE clarify whether this was intended to indicate that only exclusive teaming and subcontracting arrangements are acceptable?

26. Answer: Requirements are in accordance with RFP Section L, Paragraph 2.4.1(g), if a contractor large or small business proposes as a prime contractor, subcontractor, or team member on this acquisition, then they cannot participate on any other GEITA05 proposal.
27. Does it mean that you can't have work on any other current or past AFCEE contract?

27. Answer: No.  You may work on other current or past AFCEE contracts.  However, if you, as a prime or team member, are a successful awardee, then you must withdraw from providing future work under non-GEITA/GEITA05 AFCEE contracts in accordance with RFP Section L, paragraph 3.6(b).  All GEITA05 contractors must comply with the OCI clause in the RFP Section I, Paragraph 5352.209-9002.
28.  Can current GEITA incumbent primes and subcontractors propose and be awarded a GEITA05 contract?  

28.  Answer: Yes, current GEITA incumbent primes may propose on the GEITA05 contract.  Awards will be determined in accordance with the RFP.
29. Section 3.6(b) We believe that this requirement applies only to AFCEE non-GEITA contracts and does not apply to non-AFCEE contracts. Are we correct?
29.  Answer:  Yes, however, contractors are still required to comply with the OCI clause in the RFP Section I, Paragraph 5352.209-9002.

30a. Based on previous conversations and on the RFP, we understand that AFCEE

will consider the JV prime as a single entity and each of the partners of a JV

as co-primes in the JV, and that therefore each of the JV partners should

register as primes for the audit and other purposes. Is this correct?

30a. Answer: Yes

30b. And, we understand that because the JV will not have had any previous

corporate existence, that it will not need to register for the audit because

AFCEE will consider an audit of all the JV partners as constituting an audit

of the JV. Is that correct?

30b. Answer: Yes

31. Based on the view that all the JV partners would be co-primes, it would

be our view that the Air Force would receive "credit" for issuing prime

contracts to each of the JV businesses based on their category. For example,

if the JV included a woman-owned business, a HUBZone business, an SDB and a 

Native American-owned business as its members, contracts performed by the JV-

partner woman-owned business would be credited as a prime contract to a woman-owned business for AFCEE purposes -- even if the JV itself were not a woman-owned business. (The same would be true for the SDB, HUBZone and Native American-owned business contracts under this theory.) Is this correct?  In addition, given that these business types are the partners in the JV, would the Air Force get credit for contracts for each business type by virtue

of giving a contract to the JV?

31. Answer:  Yes, this is a correct interpretation.  The classification of small business members of the JV carries forward to the JV and the contractor should claim each subcategory in their Representations and Certifications in Section K of the request for proposal.

32. Correspondingly, any small business types that were not partners in the JV, but performed subcontracting work for the JV, would not be considered "prime contractors", and therefore, the Air Force would not receive credit for prime contracting to such businesses. But, the JV would get credit for the use of such small business subcontractors in its small business utilization plan.

Are these understandings correct?

32. Answer:  Yes, this is a correct interpretation.  The classification of small business members of the JV carries forward to the JV and the contractor should claim each subcategory in their Representations and Certifications in Section K of the request for proposal.

33.  If the managing member of the JV were a woman-owned business that owned

51% of the JV, would that in AFCEE's view make the JV a woman-owned business

in its on right?  If a majority of the companies in the JV were woman-owned business would

that (instead or also) make the JV a woman-owned business?  If the majority ownership of all of the companies in the JV were women (i.e., the sum of the ownership percentages of all the JV companies exceed 50%), would that make the JV a woman-owned company.

33. Answer:  Yes, this is a correct interpretation.  The classification of small business members of the JV carries forward to the JV and the contractor should claim each subcategory in their Representations and Certifications in Section K of the request for proposal.

34. Would having 8(a) or SDB members on the small-business JV team trigger any

special requirements if the small-business JV were NOT claiming 8(a) or SDB

status?

34.Answer:  We are not currently aware of any special requirements.  The offeror is considered either a small business or a large business in accordance with NAICS 541620.

35. Would the fact that a JV-member company had an outstanding SBA loan (or

would receive one) require the AFCEE contracting officer to secure approval of

the JV by the SBA? We understand from the SBA regulations that since this is

not an 8(a) set aside (on which the SBA would have the determination), the

AFCEE contracting officer will otherwise make the decision on the 

qualification of a JV as a small business.

35. Answer:  No.  Please reference  CFR 121.103(f)(1).  Financial responsibility will be determined in accordance with Section M, Paragraph 6.7, Small Business Administration (SBA) regulations, Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) and the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).  
36a. Is it true that in both the full-and-open and the small-business rounds

 the prime contractor must perform 51% of the work over the life of the

contract?

36a. Answer:  No. FAR 52.219-14 states that the offeror/contractor agrees to “at least 50% of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern.”  In accordance with 52.219-14(a), this requirement applies only to contracts awarded in the small business set-aside competition.  If a small business wins in the full and open competition, this requirement does not apply.  

36b. For the small-business set-aside, if the small businesses must perform

51% of the work must that work be performed by the prime or may some of it be

performed by small-business subcontractors.

36b. Answer:  The small business prime and the first tier small businesses subcontractors must perform at least 50% of the work in accordance with 52.219-14 and 13 CFR 125.6(g).

37. Please clarify who needs to submit documentation for the financial responsibility determination for team members/subcontractors. On page L-23 of 26,  section 6.7 entitled "Financial Responsibility", the RFP states that financial statements and year-to-date financial information shall be provided for the prime, all team members and any subcontractors performing more than 20% of the proposed contract effort. On page M-9 of 10, section 6.7 entitled "Financial Responsibility", the RFP states that the offeror and all teaming partners, regardless of the anticipated percentage of work, must be determined financially responsible. My understanding is that financial statements must be provided for all team members regardless of anticipated usage amount and any subcontractor if the anticipated percentage of work for the sub is more than 20%?  Is this correct? 

37. Answer: Your understanding is correct.  However, if a subcontractor will be performing more than 20% of the work, the subcontractor would be considered a team member and RFP Section L, Paragraph 2.1.4(a)(1) applies.

38. You had indicated that the scale of the AFCEE GEITA05 program was sufficient in your view to warrant utilization of the SBA rules that state that a small business JV can aggregate to a size larger than a "small business" so long as the JV partners are each small business qualified in their own right. This suggested to us that AFCEE was contemplating small business set aside awards of sufficient size to make this the applicable interpretation.  If we put together such a small business JV in reliance on this view and AFCEE determines to put forth small business awards of a lesser size, would we be deemed still qualified to compete in the small business round?

38. Answer:  Each submittal will be classified in accordance with Small Business Administration (SBA) regulations and NAICS 541620.  We will award full and open and small business set aside contracts in accordance with RFP Section M, paragraph 2.
39. Attachment L-6, question 12 shows applicable PWS sections.  It appears that the PWS numbers referenced for Cost/Scheduling Support and Training Support are incorrect.  Which should we use in the Past Performance Information (PPI) response, the category description or the applicable PWS paragraph?

39. Answer:  The category descriptions are correct in the current Attachment L-6, question 12.  The correction to the PWS references has already been made on the past performance website and will be reflected in Amendment 0001 of the RFP.

40. Reference:  Final RFP page L-20, paragraphs 6.3.1 and 6.3.2: Is the Offeror (prime contractor) required to submit in its proposal a summary description of each proposed first tier subcontractor’s estimating and purchasing systems?  Or is this requirement only applicable to the prime contractor’s estimating and purchasing systems? 

40.  Answer: Only the prime contractor is required to submit a summary description of their estimating and purchasing system.

41.  We are not listed as 1st tier subcontractors on any of the existing WERC, 4P+, 3P, or other AFCEE contracts, but we are performing work as a sub to one of those contractors.  Would our involvement in GEITA constitute a conflict of interest per OCI? 

41. Answer:  In accordance with the OCI clause section (a)(2)  "Any existing ties between the contractor and other AFCEE contracts must be severed upon award."  All GEITA05 contractors must comply with the OCI clause in the RFP Section I, Paragraph 5352.209-9002.
42.  Attachment L-6, item #13 of the RFP indicates a 4000 keystroke limitation for Brief Description of Service; however within the online past performance web site, the total character allowance indicated for Description of Service is 8000 characters. Please clarify whether the correct number of keystrokes/characters allowable for this response is 4000 or 8000.  Similarly, Attachment L-6, item #15 of the RFP indicates a 4000 keystroke limitation for Rationale for Effort Relevance; however within the online past performance web site, the total character allowance indicated for Relevance Rationale is 6000 characters.  Please clarify whether the correct number of keystrokes/characters allowable for this response is 4000 or 6000.

42. Answer:  The keystroke limitations are correct on the website.  The correction to the keystroke limitations will be reflected in Amendment 0001 of the RFP.
43. On the Past Performance Web site, the Place of Performance page does not provide an opportunity to indicate specific countries, within the overseas continents, that are appropriate for the subject contract’s performance.  Is the Government interested in having this information provided?  If so, where should it appear?

43. Answer:  The offeror is not required to provide any additional information on the specific countries.  If desired, you may include the information in the Description of Service or Rationale for Effort Relevance. 

44. In clarification of my earlier question on Section 6.7 Financial Responsibility—will the Government clarify whether the last 3 years of financial statements and year-to-date financial information through the last quarter should be provided for subcontractors/team members who are NOT performing more than 20% of the proposed contract effort?

44. Answer:  The financial information should be provided for the prime and all team members.  According to the RFP, Section L, Paragraph 2.1.4(a)(1), if any first-tier subcontractor is projected to perform more than 20% of all work on the contract, a signed TA or LOI shall be provided for that subcontractor.  Subcontractors that do not have a TA or LOI and are performing less than 20 percent of the effort do not need to submit any information.  RFP, Section L, Paragraph 2.1.4(b) states that a subcontractor without a TA or LOI is not considered part of the team and will not be evaluated.
45. Page L-18 of 19, Section 5.4.1, paragraph (i), states "Each offeror is requested to submit the past performance information for each of the 10 projects 15 days prior to the date set for receipt of proposals."  15 calendar days before August 9, is Sunday, July 25.  Is it acceptable to submit the PPI the following business day Monday, July 26?  Please clarify the exact due date for this requirement. 

45. Answer:  July 26, 2004 is acceptable for the PPI submission.
 

46.  Page L-8 of 24 indicates that page count for Corporate Experience Description is 20 pages and the page count for Corporate Experience Tables is unlimited. Page L-15, 4.5 Subfactor 1.2- Corporate Experience, paragraph 2 requires "a description detailing the work performed for each contract or task order listed in Attachment L-1..." Offerors could have dozens of relevant projects, taking up many if not all the 20 pages in the Corporate Experience section.  In fact, the more relevant projects an offeror has, the fewer pages to respond to the other criteria remain.  Would the AFCEE consider exempting the descriptions from the page count?
46. Answer:  No.
 

47. Page L-17 of 24 indicates that if a company for which past performance references are submitted is acquired, been acquired by, or otherwise merged with other companies, and/or reorganized their divisions, business groups, subsidiary companies, etc. they must include a “roadmap” describing all such changes in the organization of the company.  Are these roadmaps included in the five-page limit for Past Performance?  If so, would the AFCEE consider exempting this text from the page count?
47. Answer:  No.  The five-page limit applies to all three elements of the narrative in RFP Section L, paragraph 5.3 (past performance summary, relevance to mission capability sub factors, and organizational structure change history).
 

48. Attachment L-2 addresses some PWS sub-sections but not others (e.g., 2.3.5, 2.3.7, 2.3.11 etc...).  Is it acceptable for an Offeror to include these areas the L-2 corporate experience table?
48. Answer: No.  Do not alter the table.  However, each offeror has the discretion to provide additional information regarding additional PWS sections in the supporting description for Table L-2.
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